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CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

1. Complainant, the Director of the Water Division, U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency, Region 5 (“EPA”), and Respolndent, Birchen Farms, Inc. (“Respondeﬁt”), have agreed to
the settlement of this action bef_ére the ﬁlling of a complaint. Therefore, this action is
silnultaneously coﬁmenced and concluded under Rules 22.13(b) and 22.18(b) of the
Consolidated Rules of Practicg Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties,
Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the Revocaﬁan, Termination or
Suspension of Permits found at 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) anq 22.18(b).

2. EPA,instii:utes thfs civil administrative proceeding for the assessnient of a civil
penalt& pursuant to the authority granted in Section 309(g) of the Federal Wéter Pollﬁtion
Control Act, commonly known as the Clean Water Act (“CWA™), 33 USC § 1319(g).

3. Respondent consents rto the entry of this Consent Agreement and Final Orderl
(“CATFO”), all of the conditions of this CAFO, and the assessment of the civil penalty as outlined
in this CAFO. | |

4 EPA and Respondent agree t-hat the settlement of this mattef pursuant to 40 CFR.
§ 22.13(b) is in the public interest and that the entry of this CAFO without engaging in litigation -

is the most efficient means of resolving this matter.



STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND

5. To restore and maintain thé integrity of the nation’s water, Section 301(a) of the _
CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a), prohibits the discharge of any pollutant into navigable waters of the
United States‘by any person, except in compliance with, inter alia, a National Pollutant

| Discharge Elimination System (“NPDES”) permit issued pursuaﬁt to Section 402 of the CWA,
33 US.C. § 1342.

6. Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, establishes the NPDES prbgram
under which EPA and, upon receiving authorization frome'PAl, a state, may pemﬁt discharges
into navigable waters, subject tp specific terms and conditions.

7. Section 502(6) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(6), and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2 define
the term “pollutant” to mean, intér qlia, solid Waste, sewage, garbage, sewage shudge, biological
materials, rock, sand, cellar dth and industrial, municipal, and agricultural waste discharged into
water.,

8. Secction 502(12) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(12), and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2 define
. the term “dischafge of pollutant” to mean any addition of any pollutant to navigable waters from

" any point source. |

9. - Section 502(7) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7), defines the term “navigable
waters” to mean the waters of the United States.

10. 40 C.F.R. § 122.2 defines “waters of the United States” to include all waters
which are, were or may be used in interstate or foreign commefce, including tributaries and

wetl ands .



- 11.  Section 502.(14) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(u14), and 46 CF.R. §122.2 define
the term “point source™ to mez;.n any discernible, confined and discrete conveyance including, but
not limited to, concéntrated animal feeding operations from which pollutaﬁts_ are or may be
discharged. |

12.  Pursuantto 40 C.E.R. § 122.23 (b)(l), an “animal feedihg operation” is defined as
a lot or facility where the foﬂoﬁing conditions are met:

(i) Animals have been, are or will be stabled or confined and fed or
maintained for atotal of 45 days or mofe in any 12-month period; and
(i)  Crops, veget‘ation,r forage growth, or post-harvest residues are not
sustained in the normal growing season over any portion of the lot or facility.
13.  Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 122.23(b)(4)(D), a g‘large concentrated animal feeding
| opération” is defined to include an animal feeding operation that stables or conﬁneé 700 or more
mature dairy cows.

14." Pursuant to 40 C;F..R. §122.23(b)(2), a “concentrated animal feeding operation”
includes an animal feeding operation th;at qualiﬁeé as a “large concentrated animal feeding
operation,” |

15. Pursuémt to 40 C.F.R. §§ 122.21(a) and 122.23(d)(‘1), the owner or operator of a
concentrated animal feeding opgraﬁon which discharges must seek coverage under an NPDES

permit.



16, Pursuant to Section 402(b) pf the CWA, 42 U.S.C. § 1342(b), EPA has approved
the State of Illinois, through its Environmental Protection Agency to administer the NPDES
_ iarogram, including the issuance of NPDES permits, in Ilinois.
17.  Section 309(g) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 131%(g), authorizes the Adminilstrator to
assess a Class II civil penalty under Section 309(g)}(2)(B) of fhe CWA, 33 U.S.C.
§ 1319(g)(2)(B), after consultation with the State, when the Administrator finds, on the basis of |
any information available, that 2 person has violated Section 301 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311,
or ilas violated any perrﬁit condition or limitation implérnenting a permit issued under section
402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342. |

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

18.  Complainant alleges that Respondent is a corporation doing business in the State
of Tllinois.

19.  Complainant alleges that Respondént is a "person" as defined by Section l502(5) of
the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5), and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2.

20.  Complainant alleges that, at all timeé relevant to this CAFO, Respondent owned
and operated a dairy operation located at 4809 Stone IChurch Road, Pearl City; Minois, 6-1062
(the “Site™).

2i. Complainant alleges that, at all times relevant to this CAFO, Respondent had been |
of was stabling, conﬁning, feeding or maintaining ?00 or more mature dairy cows for a total of

45 days or more in a 12-month period at the Site,



22. Complainant alleges that, at all times relevant o this CAFO, crops, vegetation,
forage growth, or post-harvest residues were not sustained ip- the normal growing seasdn over any
portion of the Site.
23.  Complainant alleges that, at all times relevant to this CAFO, the Site was an
“animal feeding operation” as that term is defined by 40 C.F.R. § 122.23(b)(1).
24.  Complainant alleges that, at all times relevant to this CAFO, the Site was d“large |
concentrated animal feeding operation” as that térm is defined by 40 C.¥.R. § 122;23(b)(4)(i).
25.  Complainant alleges that, at all times relevant tp this CAFO, the Site was a
“concentrated animal feeding operation” as that term is .deﬁned by 40 C.F.R. § 122.23(b)(2).

26, Complainant alleges that an unnamed Waterwéy flows adjacent to the Site. This
unnamed waterway flows to the Fast Plum River, which in turn flows to the Plum and
Mississippi Rivers.

27.  Complainant alleges that the waterways described in Pafagraph 26 rare each a
“navigable water” and are “waters of the United States” as those terms are defined by 33 U.8.C.
§ 1362(7) and 40 CF.R. § 122.2.

| 28.  Complainant alleges that Respondent’s activities at the Site res;-llt in the
generation of wastes including manure, .urine, litter, waste feed and process wastewater.

29. Complajﬁant alleges that the wastes described in Paragraph 28, and constituents
thereof, are pollutants aé that term is defined by Section 502(6) of the CWA, 33 U.8.C.

§ 1362(6), and 40 CFR. § 122.2.



30.  Complainant alleges that, at all times felevant to this CAFO, Respondent did not
have a permit under Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, for the discharge of pollutants

from the Site.

Yiolations - Discharges without a Permit

31.  Paragraphs 1 through 30 are re-alleged here as if set forth in full.

32.  OnOctober 22, 2009, EPA personnel conducted an inspection of fhe Site
(“Inspection).

33.  Complainant alleges that, at the time _6f the Inspection, runoff from the silage and
barn areas olf the Site flowed through a roadside ditch and emptied into the unnamg:d waterway
referenced in Paragraph 26.

34, Complainant alleges that, at the time of the Inspection, runoff from the areas of
the Sife containing a mortality pile énd a sand pile flowed t_hrough a ditch aﬁd emptied into the |
unnamed waterway referenced in Paragraph 26.

35. Complainant alleges that the runoff described in Para’graphs 33 and 34 contained
pollutants as described in Paragrapﬁs 28 and 29.

36.  Complainant alleges that the Site and the locations and ditch referenced in
Paragraphs 33 and 34 are each a “point ‘soﬁrce”las that term is defined by Section 502(14) of the
CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14) and 40 CF.R. § 122.2.

37. Coniplainant alleges that the addition of pollutants to the unnamed waterway via
the point sources described in Paragraphs 33 and 34 are each a “discharge of pollutants” as that

term is defined in Section 502(12) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(12), and 40 C.F.R. § 1222,



- 38.  Complainant alleges that, by discharging pollutants to the unnamed tributary
without a permit in 2009, Respondent violated Section 301 of the CWA, 33 US.C. §1311.

TERMS OF SETTLEMENT

~ Assessment and Payment of Penalty

39. Eased upon the penalty factors set forth in Section 309(g) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C.
§ 13 1.9(g), EPA and Respondent agree to settlé this matter for $25,000.00.

40, | For the purposes of tirlis proceeding, and pursuant to 40 C.I;‘.R. § 22.18(b) and (c),
Respondent: (a) admits that EPA has jurisdiction over the subject matter set forth in this CAFO;V
and (b) neither admits nor denies the facts set forth in this CAFO.

41. For purpdées only of the alle;gations and agrecménfs made herein, upon execution
of this CAFO, Respondent waives all rights to request a judicial or administrative hearing on any
issue of law or fact set forth in this CAFO, inclﬁding, but not limited fo, its right to request a |
hearing under Section 309(g)(2)(B) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(2)(B), and its right to

appellate review of the CAFO found at Section 309(.g)(8)(B) of the CWA, '33 U.s.C. |
§ 1319EE®). - |

42. Respondent must pay the $25,000.00 civil penalty by mailing a certified or

casl.lier’s check made payable‘to “Treasurer, United States of America” within 60 days after both

parties have executed this CAFO and it becomes effective.



43,  Respondent must send the check to the following address:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
P.0O. Box 979077
. St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

44, This civil ﬁenalty is not deductible for federal tax purposes.

45. A transmittal letter, stating Respondent’s name, complete address, and the case
docket number must accompany the paymént. Respondent shall simultaneousl& and separately
send notice of such payﬁent, including a copy of the check, to each of the following three

persons at the address indicated:

Regional Hearing Clerk

Planning and Management Division (R-13])
EPA, Region 5 .

77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, lllinois 60604-3590

Charles Mikalian

Associate Regional Counsel

Office of Regional Counsel (C-14J)
EPA, Region 5

77 West Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590

Cheryl Burdett

Water Division {WC-157)
EPA, Region 5

77 West Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, lllinois 60604-3590

46.  Respondent's failure to pay the assessed civil penalty in accordance with the

provisions of this CAFO will result in the referral of this matter to the United States Department



of Justice for collection in accordance with Section 309(g)(9) of thé CWA, 33 U.S.C. |
- §13 19@)(9). In sucha’n action, the validity, a.mbunt, and appropriateness of such penalty shall
not be subj éct to review. In ﬁddition to any unpaid balance and interest on this penalty,
Respondent shall also be required'to pay éttomey’s fee.s -and‘ costs for qollection proceedings and
a quarterly nonpayment penalty. This nonpayment penalty shall be in an amount equal fo 20% of
the aggregate amoﬁnt of Respondent's penalties and nonpayment penalties which are unpaid as of
- the beginning of each such quarter.- |
47." Notwithstanding any other provision of this CAF O,“interest shall accrue on any
amount ovgrdue under the terms of .this CAFO at an annual rate calculated in accordaﬁce with

40 C.F.R. § 13.11.

"OTHER MATTERS

48.  This CAFO settles EPA’s claims f(ﬁ' civil penalties for the violations aﬂeged
above. |

49.  Nothing in this CAFOVrelieves Respbndent of the dl;.ty to comply with the CWA
or other federal, state or local laws or statutes. | |

50. ~ Nothing in this CAFO is intended to, ﬁor shall be construed to, operate in any way
- to resolve ény Cfimhlal liability of Respondent éris'ing from the violations ;alleged in this CAFO.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this CAFO, EPA expressly'reserves any and all righté 1o
bring an enforcement action pursuant to the Section 504 of the CWA, 33 US.C. § 1364, or other
statutory authority should EPA ﬁnd that the Site is presenting an imminent and substantial

endangerment to the health or welfare of ﬁersdns. EPA also expressly reserves the right: (a) to



take any action authorized under Section 309 of the CWA for any matters other than the
violations alleged in this CAF_O; and .(b) to enforce compliance with this CAFO.

51. This CAFO binds both parties; their ofﬁcers, directors, employees, successors,
and assigns to this action. The representative of each party signing this CAFO certifies that he or
she has authority to enter into the terms of this CAFO a;id bind that party to it. Respondent shall
~ give notice anrd a copy of this CAFO to any successor in interest prior to any transfer of
ownership or operational control of the Site.

52.  FEach party agrees to bear its own costs accrued in the course of this action.

53.  Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.38, the State was notified of this proceeding and the
other terms of this setilement.

54..  The effective date of this CAFO is the date that the CAFO is filed in the office of
the Regional Heaﬁng Clerk, after having been signed by the Regional Administrator or his
designated representative and'subj ected to the reduirements of Section 309(g)(4)(C) of the CWA,
33 U.S.C. § 1319(2)(4)(C). |

55.  This CAFO constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.

10



56,  'The information required to be maintained or submitted pursuant to this CAFO is

not subject to the Paperwork Redulction Act of 1980, 44 U.8,C. § 3501 gt sea.

Ak [z
Tinka G. Fyde, Director ate
Water Division
.S, Environmental Protection Agency
Region 5

DY P
n"-/ ’
RodneyBirchen Date
Birchen Farms, Inc. '
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CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER
In the Matter of: Birchen Farms, Inc.
Docket No. CWA-05-2012-0008

FINAL ORDER

This CAFO is hereby approved. The Respondent is hereby ORDERED to comply with
all of the terms of the CAFO effective immediately upon filing of this CAFO with the Regional

Hearing Clerk. This CAFO disposes of this matter pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(c).

- By: Dated:

Susan Hedman
Repional Administrator
United States Environmental Protection Agency

Region 5
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